

# **INDIAN STROKE ASSOCIATION**

Memorandum of Association  
and  
Bye - Laws

Indian Stroke Association  
36, Pantheon Road, Egmore  
Chennai - 660 008

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION  
AND  
BYE-LAWS  
OF INDIAN STROKE ASSOCIATION

**CONTENTS**

Sl.No.	Particulars	Page No.
1.	Copy of Registration Certificate	5
2.	Memorandum of Association 7 -	9
3.	Bye-Laws 9 -	20

படிவம் II

## சங்கப் பதிவுச் சான்றிதழ்

1975-இன் 27-ஆவது சட்டம்

பதிவு எண் : 307/2002

1975ஆம் ஆண்டு 27 ஆவது சட்டமாகிய தமிழ்நாடு சங்கங்கள் பதிவுச் சட்டத்தின் கீழ் "TAMILNADU STRIKE ASSOCIATION"

இன்று பதிவு செய்யப்பட்டுள்ளது என்று நான் இதனால் சான்றளிக்கிறேன். இது இரண்டாயிரத்து ஆண்டுகள் ஆண்டு 2002-ம் மாதம் 1 ஆம் நாளன்று என் கையிட வழங்கப்பட்டது.



(முத்திரை)

*[Handwritten Signature]*  
சங்கங்களின் பதிவாளர் பதிவு  
மத்திய சென்னை, பதிவு மாடிட்டி

INDIAN STROKE ASSOCIATION  
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

1. The name of the Association shall be :INDIAN STROKE ASSOCIATION
2. The Registered Office of the Association shall be : 36, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai-600008
3. The objectives of the Association shall be as under
  - (a) To encourage scientific research in the area of stroke (i.e., “brain-attack”) and allied disciplines.
  - (b) To promote, develop, provide exchange of knowledge as well as technical cooperation between research institutions in India.
  - (c) To conduct conferences, refresher courses, lectures, seminars, demonstrations and exhibitions related to the stroke research.
4. The management of the affairs of the Association is entrusted, in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Association, to the Governing Committee of which the first members are:

Sl.No	Name of Members	Full address of the Members	Occupation	Designation
1.	Prof. G. Arjundas	36, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai – 600 008	Medical Doctor	President
2.	Prof. P.M. Dalal	Municipal Bldg. No.3, Flat No.18, Clerk Road, HajiAli, Mumbai – 34	Medical Doctor	Vice- President
3.	Dr. Deepak Arjundas	36, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai – 600 008	Medical Doctor	Secretary
4.	Prof.Zaheer Ahmed Saheed	Apollo Hospital, 21, GreamsRoad, Chennai – 600 006.	Medical Doctor	Treasurer
5.	Prof.C.U.Velmurugendran	Shri Ramachandra Medical College, Porur, Chennai.	Medical Doctor	Committee Member
6.	Prof. MaduramDhanaraj	Stanley Medical College, 19, Panchali Amman Koil Street Chennai – 106.	Medical Doctor	Committee Member
7.	Prof. A.V. Srinivasan	19/2, Murrays Gate Road, Alwarpet, Chennai – 18.	Medical Doctor	Committee Member
8.	Prof. V. Natarajan	24/7, 7th Cross, Shastri Nagar, Chennai – 20.	Medical Doctor	Committee Member

The names, addresses and occupation of the present members of the Executive Committee of INDIAN STROKE ASSOCIATION to whom the management of the affairs of the Society is entrusted under the Tamil Nadu Society Registration Act,1975.

Sl.No	Name of Members	Full address of the Members	Occupation	Designation
1.	Prof. G. Arjundas	36, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai – 600 008	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
2.	Prof. P.M. Dalal	Municipal Bldg. No.3, Flat No.18, Clerk Road, HajiAli, Mumbai – 34	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
3.	Dr. Deepak Arjundas	36, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai – 600 008	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
4.	Prof.Zaheer Ahmed Saheed	Apollo Hospital, 21, GreamsRoad, Chennai – 600 006.	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
5.	Prof.C.U.Velmurugendran	Shri Ramachandra Medical College, Porur, Chennai.	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
6.	Prof. MaduramDhanaraj	Stanley Medical College, 19, Panchali Amman Koil Street Chennai – 106.	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
7.	Prof. A.V. Srinivasan	19/2, Murrays Gate Road, Alwarpet, Chennai – 18.	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)
8.	Prof. V. Natarajan	24/7, 7th Cross, Shastri Nagar, Chennai – 20.	Medical Doctor	(Sd.)

Place: Chennai – 8.

Date: 19-7-2002.

Witnesses:1.(Sd.)xxxxxxx

2. (Sd.)xxxxxxx

# INDIAN STROKE ASSOCIATION

## 1. INTERPRETATION

- (a) The Association shall be called Indian Stroke Association, here in after referred to as “ISA” and is registered under the Tamil Nadu Societies Registration Act, 1975.
- (b) Address of the Registered Office shall be 36, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai – 600008.
- (c) Date of formation of ISA is 19th July, 2002 (the date of its incorporation under Tamil Nadu Societies Registration Act, 1975.)
- (d) The Registrar of the District with in whose jurisdiction the office of the Association is situated, is Central Madras, Chennai–600018.
- (e) The business hours are:  
Working days: 10a.m to 5 p.m.  
Holidays: Sundays and Public Holidays as per the notification.
- (f) The “Act” means the Tamil Nadu Societies Registration Act, 1975 and “Rules” means the rules made under the said Act.
- (g) The Committee to be constituted u/s. 15 of the Act will be termed as “Governing Committee”.
- (h) ISA will be a public charitable institution entitled to relief available to the public charitable institutions under the Income Tax Act.

## LAWS

The activities in furtherance of the objectives are as under:-

- (a) To collect and maintain a fund for the objectives and purposes and in particular to accept donations and gifts of properties, movable and immovable.
- (ii) To accept and offer any grants to carry out the objectives.
- (iii) To accept, purchase, construct and maintain or take or lease any buildings or land deemed suitable.

(iv) To invest the funds collected into such securities and in such a Manner as may be deemed expedient, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and of the Income Tax Act as applicable to public charitable institutions and to sell or vary the investments, properties and assets from time to time, and to apply the same and the income thereof .

(v) To borrow and raise funds in such a manner and on such securities as it may think fit.

(vi) *Serve the society as a charitable institution by various patient empowerment and awareness activities; including medical camp; health education classes on stroke.*

## **1. MEMBERSHIP**

(a) The Members are those persons who having been admitted as such in the manner provided by bye-laws hereunder, continue as such members by paying subscriptions and who have not resigned or who are not removed or in accordance with bye-laws contained hereunder.

(b) IS A shall consist of the following members:

(i) Life Members

(ii) Associate Members

### **(c) LIFE MEMBERS:**

A medical expert with post Doctoral qualification ‘DM/DNB Neurology’ who is engaged in medical practice in stroke care, will be eligible to become a Life Member on payment of Rs. 3000/-

*(Amended vide extraordinary General Body Meeting dated 16.03.2019)*

### ***Membership:-***

- *Life membership fee to be increased to Rs. 6000 plus GST from present Rs. 3150 /- plus GST with effect from 1st April 2025.*
- *Eligibility: DM/DrNB (Neurology). Only Online.*

### ***Associate Members:-***

- *Post Graduate Residents in Neurology (DM/DrNB trainees) are eligible for Associate Membership by paying Rs. 6000/- to the association and providing the letter of support from the respective Head of the Department. They can convert associate membership to life membership by submitting completion certificates of there course.*
- *Membership application has to be done through online and should be proposed and seconded by two life members of Indian Stroke Association.*

### **(d) ASSOCIATE MEMBERS:**

A medical practitioner with a graduate degree or diploma in any general speciality or allied specialities will be eligible to become member on payment of onetime subscription of *Rs.3000/-*. They will not have voting rights at the annual general body meeting/extrodinary general body meeting and elections. They are not eligible for any office bearer post of Indian Stroke Association.

### **(e) ADMISSION OF MEMBERS:**

Every application for Membership shall be in the prescribed form signed by the applicant and recommended by atleast two Members of ISA.

(f) The lump sum amount for life membership/Life associate membership along with an admission fee of *Rs.150/-* shall be sent along with the application. If the application is rejected, this sum will be refunded.

(g) The Executive Committee shall have absolute power to admit or not to admit the Members and its decision will be final. It can reject any application for Membership without assigning any reason.

**(j) DUTIES OF MEMBERS:**

Every Member shall conduct himself in the manner which will be conducive for the promotion of the objectives and shall do his best to promote its activities. Any Member acting against the interest of ISA can be removed by the Executive Committee from the membership and the decision of the Executive Committee shall be final.

(k) The Executive Committee will have powers to re-admit all the Members who ceased to be members under clause 5 (k) or 5 (1) above.

(g) Only the life members are entitled to vote in the Annual and / or Extraordinary General body Meeting and election of the office bearers of Indian Stroke Association. The Corporate members and Associate members will not have voting rights and will not be entitled to be the office bearers or members of the executive committee.

*(Amended vide extraordinary General Body Meeting dated 16.03.2019)*

***Honorary Membership:-***

- *Honorary membership to eminent stroke specialists of Indian origin who are working outside the country and who have supported Indian Stroke Association by participating in at least two academic events of ISA and have played an important role in supporting ISA to collaborate with the respective Stroke/Neurology Association in the country in which they work.*

***ISA Fellowship:-***

- *Indian Stroke Association will award FISA (Fellow of Indian Stroke Association) to 5 ISA Members who have meritoriously contributed to the cause of stroke care in the country and also have executed leadership role in stroke field and also have done significant research in this field.*
- *FISA awardees will be selected by a committee consisting of President of ISA and two immediate past presidents.*
- *Criteria to be drafted by President & 2 Past Presidents.*

## 1. MANAGEMENT

The Executive Committee shall comprise the following

1. One President
2. One Vice-President/President elect
3. One Secretary
4. One Treasurer
5. ~~Six~~ Executive Committee members inclusive of one Webmaster  
*[Amended to 6 EC Members as per EGBM 20/03/2021]*
6. One Editor

*[Amended to adding Editor as per EGBM 1/4/2023]*

7. Ex-officio members
    - i) Two Past Presidents [the previous two past presidents]
    - ii) Representatives from India in world stroke bodies
- (a) The Vice-President/President elect, Secretary, Treasurer, Editor and other members of the executive committee shall be elected by *online*.

*President-elect will be the returning officer for the election. And elected members of the executive committee can select the webmaster.*

*Canvassing by the candidate for the election is permitted till 15 days before the voting date. Third-party canvassing is not permitted.*

*The candidates for applying for any of the 11 posts in the executive committee should have been a Life Member for at least 5 years.*

*[ Amended to online election as per Extraordinary General Body Meeting 20<sup>th</sup> March 2021]*

The tenure of the President and Vice President / President elect will be one year.

The tenure of the secretary, treasurer, Editor and the executive committee members shall be three years.

*Any life member of the ISA who has been a Life Member to 5 years may be elected as Secretary, Treasurer, Editor and executive committee member. President elect will automatically be elevated to the post of president.*

*[Amended during AGM held in Ludhiana 2013]*

The AGM decided that a member standing for Vice President/President Elect post should have compulsorily been in the executive *committee for at least one term [3 years]*.

*[Amended during AGM held in Indore 2011] & [Amended during AGM held in Ludhiana 2013].*

[a1] The Vice President/President Elect will be the returning officer for the officebearers elections. One month notice should be given for calling for nominations. The elections should be conducted between the period of November of one year to February of next year. The election results will be announced by the returning officer at the AGM in the annual conference of Indian Stroke Association.

*[Amended to online election and the results will be informed to candidates on conclusion of election by returning officer]*

(b) Any interim vacancy arising in the Executive Committee by resignation, death or otherwise can be filled-up by the Committee. The person so co-opted in the place of resigned / deceased Member shall hold Office, only for the period for which the retired/deceased Member would have held, had he continued.

(c) The Executive Committee has power to co-opt Members so, however, that the total number of members (excluding the office-bearers) does not exceed eleven. Any other co-opted Member however shall hold Office till the conclusion of the first Annual General Meeting held after such co-option.

(d) Subject to the Powers vested in the General Body under these bye- laws,

the Governing Committee shall in addition to the powers conferred by the Act, have the following powers:

- (i) to frame Rules and Regulations, not inconsistent with these Bye-Laws for carrying out its objects;
- (ii) to manage all activities including annual programmes, if any, and to appoint sub-committees and other personnel for such purposes.
- (iii) to appoint, suspend and dismiss, for time to time, such staff and other employees as it may think fit;
- (iv) to fix scales of remuneration, honorarium, prizes, awards, scholarships, fellowships, titles and degrees to students, scholars and other worthy persons;
- (v) to purchase books, manuscripts, furniture and other capital goods;
- (vi) to translate, transcribe, print, publish books, manuscripts, journals or papers relating to the objects;
- (vii) to look after and manage the finances;
- (viii) to cause proper book so account to be kept with respect to all sums of money received and spent.
- (ix) to write off any sum either wholly or in part or waive any claim in part or in full;
- (x) to look after and attend to the upkeep, maintenance, development, construction, etc., of the buildings, premises and other properties and in particular the library, its fixtures and furniture, etc.;
- [xi) to allow the use of the library books on such terms and conditions as it may deem fit;
- (xii) to acquire in the name of ISA, by way of gift, purchase, exchange, lease or hire or otherwise any lands, buildings, easements, common rights or privileges for its purposes.
- (xiii) to invest the funds in Government securities in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Rules made there under and in accordance with the provision of the Income-Tax Act, as applicable to public charitable institutions.
- (xiv) to borrow or raise or raise money as may be required and to furnish security, if necessary.

(xv) to open and operate, in the name of ISA, accounts with Bank/Banks as the it may decide from time to time.

(xvi) to appoint any Committee or such Committees and to frame the rules and regulations therefore.

- (i) To delegate or any of its powers to any one of the more any other person or any authority or any Committee as may be necessary.
- (ii) To draw, make, accept, endorse, negotiate, buy, sell, execute and issue Bills of Exchange and any documents as may be necessary.
- (iii) To appoint Auditors to audit the accounts.
- (iv) To accept donations in cash or in kind.
- (v) To appoint any person or persons to be the constituted attorney for any purpose or purposes.
- (vi) to determine the general policies in conformity with the objects laid down in the Memorandum of Association.
- (vii) to do all such Acts or things which are conducive to the objects specified in the Memorandum.
  - (a) The Executive Committee shall as far as may be, meet at least once in every quarter.
  - (b) The Secretary on his own or when instructed by the President, can convene the meeting of the Executive Committee. The meetings of the Executive Committee shall be convened upon the written requisition of not less than seven Members of the Governing Council.
  - (c) The quorum for the meetings of the Executive Committee shall be three (excluding the office bearers).
  - (d) The President, in his absence, the Vice-President, or in their absence, any Member of the Committee elected for that purpose, shall preside over the meeting of the executive committee.
  - (e) In all matters, the decision of the majority shall prevail. In the event of the votes being equal, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.
  - (f) The Executive Committee, wherever found necessary can invite eminent scientists from the field of Bio-Medical and All lied

Sciences and Medical experts specialized in stroke problems, to attend the meetings as special invitees.

## **6. MINUTESBOOK**

- (a) The Secretary shall keep a Minutes Book in which all the proceedings of the Meeting of the Governing Committee and of the General Body shall be recorded.
- (b) Any such Minutes duly signed by the Chairman and Secretary of the Meeting or the Chairman of the succeeding Meeting shall be evidence of the proceedings;
- (c) The books including the Minutes, Members' register and the books of account of ISA shall be kept at the Registered Office and shall be open to inspection of any Member of the Governing Committee during business hours.
- (d) Subject to the above powers vested in the Governing Committee, the day-to-day conduct of the affairs shall be in the hand soft he Secretary. He can delegate all or any of his power to any employee he may choose.
- (e) The President is empowered to give instructions to the Secretary in regard to the activities.
- (f) The necessary returns, etc., required to be filed with the Registrar of Societies shall be filed by the Secretary.
- (g) The Secretary shall have power to incur the expenses necessary for these purposes.
- (h) The copies of the Bye-Laws, Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance-Sheet can be supplied to the Members on payment of Rs.100/-for every copy of each document.

## **7. GENERALBODYMEETING**

- (a) The Annual General Body Meeting of the ISA shall be held on the occasion of annual conference
- (b) The business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting shall be the following:

## **Ordinary Business**

- (i) To receive and adopt the annual report;
- (ii) To consider the audited statement of account;
- (iii) To approve the budget;
- (iv) To appoint the auditor/auditors and fix his/their remuneration.

## **Special Business**

- (i) Specific subjects included in the Agenda by the Governing Committee;
- (ii) Specific subjects for which notice has been given in writing specifying the subject, at least fifteen days before the date of Meeting, signed by a proposer and seconder, who are members entitled to vote at the meeting;
- (c) All businesses transacted in an Extraordinary General Meeting area special businesses.
- (d) Any proposal for the appointment of a new auditor in the place of or in addition of the retiring auditor shall not be considered unless a notice in writing proposing his name duly signed by a proposer and a seconder who are members entitled to vote at the meeting and the consent of the new auditor in writing, are given at least fifteen clear days before the date of the meeting.
- (e) The Executive Committee may, on its own motion, and shall, at the request of not less than 1/3rd Members, convene an Extraordinary General Meeting for considering any specific subject.
- (f) The notice of the General Meeting shall be given to the Members at least 21 days before the day appointed for such Meeting.
- (g) The notice shall be sent to the Member by one or more of the following modes, namely;

- (a) by local delivery;
- (b) by post;
- (c) by circulation among the members;
- (d) by publication through press.
- (e) email
- (h) The notice shall also be affixed to the Notice Board.
- (i) Any inadvertent omission to send a notice or non-receipt of such notice by any Member shall not invalidate any resolution passed or proceedings held at such meeting.
- (j) The President shall preside over all the Meetings, in his absence, the Vice-President and in his absence, the Chairman elected by those present shall preside.
- (k) The quorum for all meetings of the General Body shall be 10% of the all registered members entitled to vote
  - (l) In case the reason quorum for duly notified meeting of the General Body, the Meeting shall stand adjourned and will be reconvened after ½ hour at the same place and the members present shall form the quorum for such an adjourned meeting.
- (m) All questions submitted to a Meeting shall be decided by a show of hands and in the case of equality of votes, the Chairman shall have a casting vote. Only life members will have the voting rights.
- (n) The Chairman of the Meeting may with the consent of a majority in number of the members present adjourn any meeting from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting, other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.
- (o) A declaration by the Chairman of the Meeting that resolution has one show of hands been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an entry made to that effect in the Minute Book, shall be sufficient evidence of the fact, without proof

of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

***Election:-***

- *Total member of Executive Committee will be 11.*
- *Election to the post of president elect will be conducted annually between December of the year and March of the following year (December-March).*
- *President elect will automatically assume the office as president of ISA during the Annual Conference of the subsequent year.*
- *Office duration of president will be one year only. He / She cannot stand for re-election.*
- *After the tenure of one year, he/she will continue in the executive committee for 2 more years as past president.*
- *The term of Honorary Secretary, Treasurer, Editor & Executive Committee members will be for 3 years.*
- *Once their terms of 3 years is completed, they can continue in the same post for one more term on re-election. After two terms in office, they won't be able to contest for each of the respective posts.*
- *Election process and voting will be conducted only in online mode.*
- *President Elect will be the Returning officer.*
- *Election period will be December to March.*
- *Campaigning can be done individually, personally on one to one basis.*
- *Third party canvassing & group canvassing are not allowed.*
- *Campaigning should be stopped 24 Hours prior to the commencement of voting.*
- *Voting period will be one week. It will start at 10 am on the first day and will end at 5 pm on the last day of voting.*
- *Candidate / Authorised representative can be present at the time of counting.*
- *Date & Venue of the counting will be intimated to the candidates by the Returning officer well in advance.*
- *All communication regarding election will be issued by the Returning officer only.*
- *All the expenses incurred for the election process will be borne by ISA.*

- *After counting, the final results will be announced by the Returning officer in the Executive Committee and with the approval of Executive Committee it will be announced in Annual General Body (AGM) meeting for approval.*
- *Once AGM approved the results the election process will be completed.*
- *Any appeal regarding the election process has to be submitted to the president of Indian Stroke Association (ISA).*
- *After the approval of AGM, the elected office bearers will assume their office in the Valedictory function during INSC.*

## **8. EMPLOYEES OF THE ASSOCIATION**

- (i) The Executive Committee may, from time to time, appoint Officers and employees and shall have the power to determine their duties and authorities, and to fix their remuneration and to terminate their services.

## **9. SUITS AND PROCEEDINGS**

ISA shall sue and be sued and all applications or legal proceedings on behalf of or against ISA shall be brought, made and taken in the name of the Secretary.

## **10. PROPERTIES**

All the properties whether movable or immovable, shall vest with ISA and shall be in the name of ISA.

## **11. FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS**

- (a) The financial year shall be from 1st April to 31st March. The Accounts of the first year shall however be closed on 31st March, 2003.
- (b) The accounts shall be audited every year by a Chartered Accountant appointed in the Annual General Meeting. However, the first Auditor shall be appointed by the Committee within one month from the date of registration. The auditor so appointed shall make a report to the Members on the accounts examined by him and on the Balance-Sheet & Income and Expenditure Account laid before the Annual General Meeting during his tenure of Office.

## **12. DISSOLVE**

If upon the winding up or dissolution, there remains after the satisfy action of all its debts and liabilities any property what so ever, the same shall not be paid to or distributed among the Members, but shall be given or transferred to some other institution or institution having similar objects and prohibiting the distribution of their income and property among their Members.

## **13. SPECIAL RESOLUTION**

- (a) Special Resolution is a resolution passed by a majority of not less than three fourths (3/4) of the Members entitled to vote as are present in person at a General Body Meeting of which a notice of not less than 21 days specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution has been duly given.
- (b) Special Resolution is required for the following matters:
  - (i) to amend the objectives for the purposes stated in section 12 of the Act;
  - (ii) to amend, add or delete any rule or rules in the Bye-laws;
  - (iii) to change the name;
  - (iv) to dissolve and/or amalgamate with any other Society.

## **13. CONFERENCES**

- a) Annual Conference of the ISA will be organized every year between January and March.
- b) The conference allotment will be based on the applications received by the potential organizers. The bidders will make their presentations in the general body.
- c) Due representation will be given to the different regions of the country.
- d) ISA will provide refundable amount of Rs 1 lakh to the local organizing committee as the seed money.

- d) The organizers of the annual conference will enter a memorandum of understanding with the ISA, that they will contribute 25% of the registration fee to ISA. After the completion of the conference, 50% of the left over funds should be contributed to ISA. In the event of any loss, ISA will not be liable to contribute any funds to the local organizing committee.

### ***ISA Annual Conference:-***

- *Annual Conference of ISA will be awarded by the Executive Committee after reviewing the bids which have been submitted before 30th of June of the year prior to the penultimate year of Conference. It will be awarded to registered societies only with PAN Number.*
- *50% of the Registration Fee to be given at the valedictory function and 50% of surplus funds after the conference*
- *An MoU (Memorandum of Understanding) has to be signed between the Organising secretary of the conference (INSC) and the Honorary secretary of Indian Stroke Association.*
- *Scientific programme of the conference will be decided by the Scientific committee consisting of President, Secretary and one Past President of ISA and 3 members from the organizing committee.*
- *Scientific Programme has to be finalised at least 4 months prior to the conference.*
- *All faculty including national faculties should be intimated about their topics and date of presentation at least 3 months prior to the conference.*
- *Registration Fee should be decided with the concurrence of ISA Executive Committee.*
- *Inaugural Ceremony, Valedictory function, Presidential Oration and Award Ceremony during INSC should be done as per ISA Protocol.*
- *Organising Committee should arrange the facilities for ISA Executive Committee & Annual General body Meeting during INSC.*
- *All Past president of ISA should be invited as guests and organising committee should take care of their registration and accommodation.*

- *All the Office bearers of ISA will be the guests of the organising committee.*
- *FISA will be awarded during the inaugural ceremony of INSC.*

**Orations: -**

- *Apart from Presidential Oration, ISA can invite orations in the name of members or as memorial after approval in Executive Committee & Annual General body.*
- *The Amount to be deposited and the guidelines for the oration will be laid down by the ISA Executive Committee on a time to time basis.*

*Founder President Oration in the name of Prof. G. Arjundas from 2025*

**14. INDEMNITY**

The President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer and other Officers, employees shall be indemnified against any loss, costs, charges and expenses which he may incur or may become liable to, by reason of any contract, entered into or act or thing done by him as office bearer or employee in any way in the benefited is charge of his duties.

**15. MISCELLANEOUS**

- (i) No Act or proceedings of the Governing Committee shall be invalid or questioned for the reason of any vacancy / vacancies against its Members or any defect in the Constitution thereof.
- (ii) Any resolution passed by the majority of the Members of the Governing Committee by circulation without any meeting and evidenced under the signature by the Members of the Governing Committee shall be as effective as are solution under the meeting duly called and held.
- (iii) Any member of the Governing Committee may resign his Office by a letter addressed to the Governing Committee which shall be noted by the Governing Committee if accepted.
- (iv) The income and the property shall be applied solely for the promotion of the aims and objects set-forth in the Memorandum of Association. No portion thereof shall be paid or transferred directly / indirectly by way or bonus, by way of profits to any Members.

- (v) All the other provisions of the Tamil Nadu Societies Registration Act, 1975 wherever not mentioned in Bye-law shall apply to the Association.

Certified to be true and correct copy of the Bye-laws of The Indian Stroke Association.

Date:

(Sd.)xxxx

Signature of Subscribers of Bye-laws